

4757-3-01

Definitions.

The following meanings will apply to all rules promulgated by the counselor, ~~and~~ social worker, and marriage and family therapy board, unless in a specific paragraph under one of the counselor, ~~and~~ social worker, and marriage and family therapist board rules, the word or term is explicitly defined or used in different manner.

- (A) The terms "practice of professional counseling," "clinical counseling principles, methods, or procedures," "social work," "accredited educational institution," and "mental and emotional disorders" shall for the purposes of these rule have the same meanings as are set forth for each under section 4757.01 of the Revised Code.
- (B) The terms "renewal," "renewed," "license," and "licensee" shall for the purposes of these rules have the same meanings as are set forth each under section 4757.01 of the Revised Code.
- (C) "Agency" means an organization which has a clearly defined mission statement with goals and objectives that include the provision of counseling, ~~and/or~~ social work, and/or marriage and family therapy services, and which is recognized by a unit of government or others authorized to legitimize its functions. In addition, it must have clearly defined lines of authority, a formal decision-making process, and differentiated staff roles with written job descriptions. Agency settings include private non-profit organizations, public organizations, and others approved by the board that are engaged in the practice of social work, ~~and/or~~ counseling, and/or marriage and family therapy. It does not include settings in which social work, ~~and/or~~ counseling, and/or marriage and family therapy is engaged in as a private practitioner, as a member of a partnership, or as a member of a group practice.
- (D) "Applicant" means individual who has:
- (1) Filed with the executive director of the board a completed application for licensure as a professional clinical counselor, professional counselor, independent marriage and family therapist, marriage and family therapist, independent social worker, social worker, or for registration of title as a social work assistant, on forms prescribed by the board; and
 - (2) Signed the application form and had it notarized; and,
 - (3) Paid the appropriate fee.
- (E) "Application" means a written application, on forms prescribed by the board, filed with the executive director of the board, wherein the applicant has provided all the information required for the license the applicant desires.

- (F) "Board" means the counselor, ~~and~~ social worker, and marriage and family therapist board. When the board is cited that may be the full board or one of the appropriate professional standards committee.
- (G) "Board office" means the business office of the counselor, ~~and~~ social worker, and marriage and family therapist board.
- (H) "Civil service employee" means an individual employed by the state, the counties, cities, city health districts, general health districts, and city school districts thereof, as defined in division (A) of section 124.01 the Revised Code.
- (I) "Counseling" means the practice of professional counseling as defined in division (A) of section 4757.01 of the Revised Code for a fee salary, or other consideration.
- (J) "Coursework" means a college or university course at an accredited educational institution in which the applicant was enrolled for credit.
- (1) "Graduate coursework" is any coursework that meets the requirements of a post-baccalaureate degree and in which the applicant was enrolled after receiving their baccalaureate degree and in which the applicant received a grade of "B" or higher.
- (2) "Undergraduate coursework" is any coursework which is recognized by the granting institution as undergraduate coursework in which the applicant received a grade of "C-" or higher.
- (K) "Employee," "employed," "employment," and "experience" all refer to work for a fee or salary, not including practicum and/or internship experiences taken as part of an educational program, that falls within the scope of practice of the license for which the applicant is applying.
- (L) "License fee" means the fee(s) established by the board for the processing of applications and/or the issuance of licenses.
- (M) "Master's degree or Ph.D. degree in social work" means a degree granted from programs accredited by the "Council on Social Work Education."
- (N) "Private practice" and "private practitioner" mean an individual who independently, in partnership, or in corporation practices counseling, ~~or~~ social work, or marriage and family therapy as defined in section 4757.01 of the Revised Code and who has the responsibility for the diagnosis and treatment of his/her own clients and sets up

his/her own condition of exchange with those clients, and identifies himself/herself in any manner as a counselor, ~~or~~ social worker, or marriage and family therapist in offering such services.

- (O) "Scope of practice" means the services, methods, and techniques, in which and the areas for which, an individual is licensed under Chapter 4757. of the Revised Code and social worker board rules.
- (P) "Social work" means the application of specialized knowledge of human development and behavior and social, economic, and cultural systems in directly assisting individuals, families, and groups to improve or restore their capacity for social functioning, including counseling, the use of psychosocial interventions, and social psychotherapy for a fee, salary, or other consideration.
- (1) "Psychosocial interventions" means the application of social work that involves individual, dyadic, family, or group interventions that utilize treatment modalities such as a family systems therapy, client centered advocacy, environmental modifications, community organization and/or organizational change. These modalities are implemented in crisis, short-term, and long-term therapeutic interventions directed at reducing, increasing, enhancing, maintaining, or changing target behaviors, areas of functioning, or environmental structures or processes.
- (2) "Social psychotherapy" is the application of social work toward the goal of enhancement and maintenance of psychosocial functioning of individuals, families, and small groups. It includes interventions directed to interpersonal interactions, intra-psychic, dynamics, and life-support and management issues. It also includes the professional application of social work theory and methods to the treatment and prevention of psychosocial dysfunction, disability, or impairment, including mental and emotional disorders. Social psychotherapy consists of assessment; diagnosis; treatment, including psychotherapy and counseling; consultation; and evaluation.
- (3) "Social services" are those activities which improve and maintain an individual's functioning in institutions, at home, or in the community and which do not require the specialized knowledge of social work, counseling, psychosocial interventions, or social psychotherapy. For individuals performing only social services licensure is not required pursuant to Chapter 4757. of the Revised Code.
- ~~(4) "Counseling" means the practice of professional counseling as defined in division (A) of section 4757.01 of the Revised Code.~~

- (Q) For the purpose of the counselor, ~~and~~ social worker, and marriage and family therapist board rules and the licenses granted under them, the board adopts the following titles and meanings:
- (1) "Professional Counselor" is a counselor who has been licensed by the board to engage in the practice of professional counseling as defined in division (A) of section 4757.01 of the Revised Code.
 - (2) "Professional Clinical Counselor" means a counselor licensed by the board to engage in the practice of professional counseling and to engage in the unsupervised diagnosis and treatment of mental and emotional disorders and conditions.
 - (3) "Independent Social Worker" means a social worker licensed by the board to engage in social work as defined in division (C) of section 4757.01 of the Revised Code.
 - (4) "Social Worker" means a social worker licensed by the board to engage in social work as defined in division (C) of section 4757.01 of the Revised Code.
 - (5) "Registered Social Work Assistant" is an individual issued a certificate of registration by the board in accordance with division (C) of section 4757.29 of the Revised Code.
 - (6) "Independent Marriage and Family Therapist" means a marriage and family therapist licensed by the board to engage in marriage and family therapy as defined in division (G) of section 4757.01 of the Revised Code.
 - (7) "Marriage and Family Therapist" means a marriage and family therapist licensed by the board to engage in marriage and family therapy as defined in division (G) of section 4757.01 of the Revised Code.
- (R) "Counseling experience" means the applicant's primary employment responsibility was in counseling, supervision of a counseling program, or direct involvement in the administration or policy division of a counseling program.
- (S) "Clinical resident is a professional counselor engaged in training supervision while seeking licensure as a professional clinical counselor. The title to be used for this designation will be "professional counselor/clinical resident". A person may use this title until they have completed the three thousand hours required for the professional clinical counselor license.

- (T) "Counselor trainee" is an individual who is seeking licensure as a professional counselor or a professional clinical counselor who has filed a training agreement with the board and who is currently enrolled in either a practicum or internship in a counselor education program as defined in rule 4757-13-01 of the Administrative Code. Individuals seeking licensure under rule 4757-13-04 of the Administrative Code, who have passed the LPC examination prior to December 31, 1998, may also use the designation of counselor trainee while they are completing the requirements for licensure as a professional counselor.
- (U) "Doctoral internship" is a doctoral internship which is taken in a counselor education program which is approved by the counselor professional standards committee or at a counselor education program which meets the criteria of a committee approved program.
- (V) "Impaired or impairment" means the presence of the disorder of alcoholism, substance abuse, mental illness or other debilitating conditions.
- (W) "Impaired treatment program" is a plan of care and rehabilitation services provided by organizations or persons authorized by the board to provide such services.
- (X) "Impairment program" means a program for the prevention, detection, intervention, rehabilitation, and monitoring of impaired counselors or social workers.
- (Y) "Practice of marriage and family therapy" means the practice of marriage and family therapy as defined in division (H) of section 4757.01 of the Revised Code, for a fee, salary or other consideration.
- (Z) "Client" as used in Ohio Administrative Code 4757, means a patient or consumer of services or that person's legal guardian, or any other receiver of mental health services.

Effective:

R.C. 119.032 review dates: 12/08/2003

Certification

Date

Promulgated Under: 119.03
Statutory Authority: 4757.10
Rule Amplifies: 4757.10
Prior Effective Dates: 6/11/85 (Emer.), 9/19/85
(Emer.), 12/19/85, 7/3/97,
7/10/00, 9/20/02.